
MAYOR 
Joe Purcell 

POLICE CHIEF 
Paul M. George Jr. 

PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR 
Michael Hurff Jr.  

FINANCE OFFICER/CITY CLERK 
Andrew Lehr 

 
The City of 

Montana 
 

       City of Hardin     406 N Cheyenne Hardin MT 59034     Phone (406) 665-9292  Fax (406) 665-2719 
 
 
 

 
The City of Hardin is inviting you to a scheduled Zoom meeting. 

 

Council Meeting 
of Tuesday, January 16, 2024 

 

Held by virtual meeting and the Public is invited to attend in person. 
 

Topic:  City of Hardin Council Meeting – 01/16/2024 

Start Time:  6:30 p.m. Mountain Time 
         

Council Meeting – 6:30 p.m. 
 

The meeting will open at 6:15 p.m. 
 

If you will be logging into the Council meeting by: 
 

    Computer: Please identify yourself by submitting your first and last name by using the “Chat” function. 
 

 Phone:  Please identify yourself by stating your First and Last Name. 
 

City of Hardin is inviting you to a scheduled Zoom meeting. 
 

Join Zoom Meeting 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/9897104479 

 

Meeting ID: 989 710 4479 
One tap mobile 

+17193594580,,9897104479# US 
+12532050468,,9897104479# US 

 

Dial by your location 
+1 719 359 4580 US 
+1 253 205 0468 US 

+1 253 215 8782 US (Tacoma) 
+1 346 248 7799 US (Houston) 

+1 669 444 9171 US 
+1 669 900 9128 US (San Jose) 

+1 309 205 3325 US 
+1 312 626 6799 US (Chicago) 

+1 360 209 5623 US 
+1 386 347 5053 US 
+1 507 473 4847 US 
+1 564 217 2000 US 

+1 646 558 8656 US (New York) 
+1 646 931 3860 US 
+1 689 278 1000 US 

+1 301 715 8592 US (Washington DC) 
+1 305 224 1968 US 

Meeting ID: 989 710 4479 
Find your local number: https://us02web.zoom.us/u/kdYSyhPxWF 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/9897104479
https://us02web.zoom.us/u/kdYSyhPxWF


AGENDA 

January 16,2024 

MEETING CALLED TO ORDER AT 6:30 P.M. 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

ROLL CALL: Mayor: 
Alderpersons: Steven Hopes 

Rock Massine 

CONSENT AGENDA: 
Council Meeting 1/02/2024 
Claims 

Clayton Greer 
Jeremy Krebs 

The City of Hardin 

406 N. Cheyenne Avenue 
Hardin, MT 59034 

Chris Sharpe 
Antonio Espinoza  

Resolutions or Ordinances 1/02/2024 

PUBLIC COMMENT: 

MAYOR: 

COMMITTEE REPORTS: 
• Personnel Committee/City Policy: Mayor 

• Sewer & Water: Massine 

• Law Enforcement: Greer 

• Streets & Alleys: Espinoza 

• Parks & Playgrounds: Krebs 

• Finance/Landfill: Greer 

• Resolutions and Ordinances: Sharpe 

SPECIAL COMMITTEES: 
PETITIONS & COMMUNICATION: 

o City-County Planning Board Minutes 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS: 

NEW BUSINESS: 
o City-County Planning Board Recommendation - Beery Conditional Use 

o Call for Bids - SCBA's - Big Sky Fire $99,893.80 

o Auction Items 

o Fireworks 

STAFF REPORTS 
• Public Works: 
• Finance: 
• Police: 
• Legal: 

o County Jail 

• Economic Development: 

RESOLUTIONS & ORDINANCES: 

ANNOUNCEMENTS: 
Business Licenses and Pet Licenses are due by February 1, 2024 

City of Hardin Job Openings: Full time positions: Police Officers, School Resource Officer, Building Inspector/Code 
Enforcement Apprentice and General Laborer or Maintenance Worker I-Maintenance Worker V. Positions are dpen 
until filled. 

Meeting adjourned at 

Additions to the Agenda can be voted on by Council to add to the Agenda for the next Council meeting. 
Agenda items will need to be submitted by Wednesday noon before a Tuesday Council meeting. 

Page 1 of 1 



City of Hardin 

Resolutions or Ordinances Committee Meeting 

January 2, 2024 

The Resolutions or Ordinances Committee Meeting began at 6:00 p.m. In attendance was 
Committee members Chris Sharpe, Steven Hopes, and Antonio Espinoza and Council Members 
Clayton Greer, Rock Massine, and Jeremy Krebs, Mayor Joe Purcell, Finance Officer/City 
Clerk Andrew Lehr, City Attorney Jordan Knudsen, Deputy City Clerk Angela Zimmer, and 
Police Chief Paul George. 

Also present physically and by virtual meeting: Members of the public 

Public Comment: N/A 

Sharpe reported there has been concerns voiced of people parking on their grass. Knudsen noted 
City Code 9-6-8 prohibits parking on boulevards and curbs and 10-2-6 prohibits driving on 
sidewalks, there is not a code prohibiting parking on grass of private property. It was voiced the 
definition of driveway needed to be clearly defined for future developments. Hopes noted three 
things that could define a driveway arc using gravel, pavement, or concrete. Espinoza pointed out 
it would need to be specific. There was discussion of vacant lots that are currently being used to 
store vehicles, trailers, etc. and of the maximum width of a driveway and what defines a driveway. 
The consensus of the committee is to redefine the word driveway as having one-inch (1") minus 
gravel with a minimum of three inches (3") depth, a width no less than twelve feet (12'), and no 
longer than thirty feet (30') without requesting a variance, and language will be added that parking 
will only be allowed on a driveway and not grass. 

Sharpe noted there is not a City Code for road width for new Commercial and Residential 
developments. (Chief George entered the meeting) An example of street improvements for 
subdivisions within the city limits from the City of Billings was reviewed. Consensus of the 
committee is to recommend a Seventy-foot (70') right-of-way with a back to back curb width of 
forty-four feet (44') to fifty feet (50') for Commercial and a Sixty-foot (60') right-of-way with a 
back to back curb width of forty-two feet (42') for Residential. 

Sharpe noted Greer had previously recommended a change to garage dimensions during the last 
meeting. Greer pointed out current code is 1,000 sq. foot maximum for a garage. He suggested 
for the code to be changed to twelve hundred square feet (1,200 sq, ft.). Krebs noted a standard 
garage is around thirty foot by thirty-six foot (30 ft. x 36 ft.). The consensus of the committee was 
to amend the code to 1,200 sq. foot and if an individual seeks a larger garage, they can come to 
Council for a variance. 

There was no further discussion. 



The meeting ended at 7:02 p.m. 

Chris Sharpe, Committee Chairman 

ATTEST: 

Angela Zimmer, Deputy City Clerk 



January 2, 2024 - Minutes 

THE COMMON COUNCIL 
CITY of HARDIN, MONTANA 

COUNCIL MEETING: The Regular Council Meeting for January 2, 2024 was called to order 
at 7:03 p.m. Mayor Joe Purcell presiding by reciting the Pledge of Allegiance. 

The following Aldermen were present: Steven Hopes, Clayton Greer, Chris Sharpe, Rock Massine, 
Espinoza and Jeremy Krebs. 

Also present: Finance Officer/City Clerk Andrew Lehr, Public Works Director Michael Hurff, Jr., 
Deputy City Clerk Angela Zimmer, City Attorney Jordan Knudsen and Police Chief Paul George, 
Jr. 

Also present physically and by Virtual Meeting: Members of the public. 

MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETINGS & CLAIMS: Ho 
the Council minutes as written for December 19, 2023. Motion se, 
the motion was unanimously approved. 

Greer made a motion to approve the claims for January 4O24. 

kikkips

December, 2023 

CLAIM Noi 

30535, 305348-3 

January, 2024 30515-39 34, 30536-305 

Claims Total (Expenditures) 

December Payroll 

Total Submitted

Espinoza seconded. 

PUBLIC COMMENT: 
Lauri siiTst 

notified IlUncil that 
regardijart meters. M.' 

MAYOR: 

e motion *,as unanim 

made the motion to approve 
alifib,y Greer. On a voice vote 

y approved. 

onthly Total 

tb 494,772.14 

2,430.12

497,202.26 

211,887.36 

709,089.62 

a as vehicles parked all over his lawn. She 
iieceived letters from NorthWestern Energy 

he will reach out to larger cities for more information. 

Mayor Purce11wished every!' e a Happy New Year and thanked the City staff for their hard 
work and dedication g there several projects planned for 2024 and 2025. 

Personnel Policy/City Po 1j 
Mayor Purcell report the City has job openings for Police Officers, Maintenance Worker 

I, Building Inspector/Code Enforcement Apprentice, and a School Resource Officer (SRO). 

Sewer & Water: 

Law Enforcement: 
Hopes reported a Community Watch meeting is anticipated to be held in February. 

Streets & Alleys: 

Parks & Playgrounds: 
Lehr reported he and Hurff continue to work on the grant application for the South Park 

Project. 

Finance/Landfill: 

lof3 



January 2, 2024 - Minutes 

Resolutions & Ordinances: 
Sharpe reported the consensus of the committee is to redefine the word driveway 

as having one-inch (1") minus gravel with a minimum of three inches (3") depth, and a 
width no less than twelve feet (12'), and no longer than thirty feet (30'). 

Sharpe reported the committee discussed creating a code for road width for new 
Commercial and Residential developments. The consensus of the committee is to 
recommend a Seventy-foot (70') right-of-way with a back to back curb width of forty-
four feet (44') to fifty feet (50') for Commercial and Sixty-foot (60') right-of-way with 
a back to back curb width of forty-two feet (42') for Commercial. 

Sharpe reported the consensus of the committee was to amend the code for garage 
dimensions to 1,200 sq. foot and if an individual seeks a larger garage, they can come to 
Council and request a variance. 

SPECIAL COMMITTEES: 

PETITIONS & COMMUNICATIONS: 
The City received the December 2023 newsletter from the Montana Department 

of Transportation. 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS: 

NEW BUSINESS: 
Mayor Purcell asked Council if they were interested in to making any changes to 

the Committees they currently serve on. Hopes voiced he would like to be on the Streets 
& Alleys Committee and Greer voiced he will move to the Law Enforcement Committee. 
Krebs motioned to approve the change in appointments. Hopes seconded. On a voice 
vote the motion was unanimously approved. 

Hurff reviewed the preliminary estimate, received from S Bar S, for a new sand 
shed in the amount of $55,715. He added that he has reached out to Leroy Melville to 
design the footing and Jeff Schindler for pricing of a concrete slab. Hurff noted that he 
was told that if there is a fifteen percent variation in cost, they would have to rebid the 
project. Massine motioned to approve the estirpte. Espinoza seconded. On a voice vote 
thonotion was unanimously approved. jr 
iI 

Lehr reported the has submitted the 2023 Annual Financial Report to the State and 
provided a review of the report. Massine motioned to accept the report. Hopes seconded. 
On a voice vote the motion wasounanimously approved. 

STAFF REPORTS: 
Public Works: 

Hurff reported there were vehicles purchased for the streets and water 
departments; he has compiled a list of items to be auctioned; there was a curb stop that 
was repaired through the program; and the radiant heat has been installed in the shop. 

Hurff reported he has been in contact with the contractor for Love's RV Park 
regarding backfill and curb repairs. Hurff noted that he and Connie Yerger have been in 
contact with the state regarding the approach to Love's RV Park. Hurff read a letter that 
was provided by Yerger that he received from Zach Kirkemo, with the Montana 
Department of Transportation. 

Finance: 

Police: 
Police Chief George reviewed calls for service and noted there were not any major 

incidents over the holidays. He noted interviews will be scheduled for officer positions. 

2o13 



January 2, 2024 - Minutes 

Legal: 
Knudsen reported there was a meeting with the County to discuss the Farm to Market 

agreement. He noted it went back to the original proposed agreement and they walked away with 
the decision not to touch the current agreement; there were multiple suggestions of what a contract 
would look like when it expires in three years with reference to Railway. 

Knudsen reported there is a meeting with the County this Thursday at 2:00 p.m. to discuss 
issues at the jail. He noted there has been incidents that are not acceptable. 

Economic Development: 
Tina Toyne reported she is waiting to hear if they will receive the Community Development 

Block Grant (CDBG) that was applied for a housing needs assessment; they were accepted into the 
Federal Railroad Administration Corridor ID Program placing them on a pathway to service 
development; and eight states, that include hundreds of local communities and two-dozen tribal 
governments, will be invited to the January board meeting for the Big Sky Passenger Rail Authority 
(BSPRA) to join together to develop the route. Toyne noted she continues to work with the Montana 
Business Attraction and there is a meeting in mid-January with Local Initiative Support Corporation 
(LISC), representatives of Housing Urban Development (HUD), to refine their next steps. Toyne 
reported she has contacted the owners of the laundromat, on Center Avenue, and this location is 
their next project; there was not a timeline provided. .09" 

RESOLUTIONS & ORDINANCES: 

ANNOUNCEMENTS: 
Mayor Purcell announced the following: 

December Anniversaries: Bryan Wilson, 2 years; Christmas Tree p -up is scheduled from January 
2nd to January h

D ; Call for Bids for the City and the Hardin: Volunteer Fire Department for SCBA's 
are due by 3:00 p.m. on January 9, 2024; city Offices will be closed on Monday, January 15, 2023 
for Martin Luther King Day; and 2024 Business and Pet Licenses are due by February 1, 2024. a 

Mayor Purcell announced de following job openings: Full-time positions — Police Officers, School 
Resource Officer (SRO), Building Inspector/Code Enforcement Apprentice, and Maintenance 
Worker I. All positions are open until tilled. 

Greer motiorfed to adjourn the meeting at 7:38•vm,..401opes seconded. On a voice vote the motion, 
• ••.. was unanimously approved. -- • 

4/ii • •-• 

Joe Purcell, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

Andrew Lehr, Finance Officer/City Clerk 

3 of 3 



eittiCNr 7̀6" tt

Submitted for Approval 

January 16, 2024 

Month CLAIM No. Monthly Total 

November, 2023 

30595 87.84 

December, 2023 30555-30556, 30558-30563, 30565-30570, 
30572, 30574-30577, 30580-30590 82,152.99 

January, 2024 30571, 30573, 30578-30579, 30591-30592, 
30594, 30596-30598 40,045.70 

TOTAL Submitted $ 122,286.53 

Claims or Expenditures over $5,000 

per Resolution #2189 
Vendor Purpose Check # Amount 

JORDAN W KNUDSEN Legal Services 39935 8,000.00 
DAVE WEER Mileage, meals for Montana LE Academy 39931 5,919.14 
CRASH CHAMPIONS Repairs to '14 Chevy Tahoe hail damage 39955 6,104.10 

TRANSFERS TO BOND TRUSTEE 
US BANK NATIONAL ASSOC December taxes transferred to trustee 39957 27,108.02 

EXEMPT from Resolution 2189: 
NORTHWESTERN ENERGY Electric Utilities 39954 21,293.74 

Approved Previously November 7, 2023 
WAGNERS HEATING & AIR CONDITIONING Radiant heat system for shop 39949 13,500.00 

Page 1 of 1 
























































